
One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 1

APPROVED Minutes of the ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD held on Tuesday,
January 19, 2016, in the Public Meeting Room of the Village Hall, One
Olde Half Day Road, Lincolnshire, IL.

PRESENT: Chairman Grover, Members Gulatee, Hardnock, Jensen (departed at 8:55
p.m.), Baskin Kennerley (arrived at 7:05 p.m.); Alternate Member
Barranco and Trustee Liaison Hancock.

ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Grover called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

1.0 ROLL CALL
The roll was called by Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya and Chairman
Grover declared a quorum to be present.

2.0 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

2.1 Approval of the Minutes of the Architectural Review Board held Tuesday, November
17, 2015.

Member Gulatee moved and Member Hardnock seconded the motion to approve
the minutes of the regular meeting of the Architectural Review Board held on
November 17, 2015, as presented. The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

3.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS:

3.1 Consideration of Site and Building Design plans for a proposed 24,500 square foot
building addition and associated parking lot relocation for Half Day School, 239
Olde Half Day Road (Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103)

David Gassen, a Senior Project Architect, Wright & Co, representing School
District 103, provided background information on the project. He stated the
proposed 2-story building addition will involve shifting the existing parking lot further
west. The detention basin, which will remain mostly dry except during extreme rain
events, will be planted with suitable plants. Landscape screening is also proposed
along the west property line to benefit the house adjacent to the parking lot.
Plantings along the west and north building foundation were chosen to provide for
all-season interest and varied heights. The addition is proposed to match the
existing building height, materials and color (white painted brick). The proposed
corrugated metal rooftop screen will be centrally located on the roof and will extend
6” over the rooftop equipment. They are proposing white fiber cement panels to
break up the building facade. Two new light poles are proposed in conformance
with Village codes. Mr. Gassen reviewed building massing images and showed
sample photos of proposed fiber cement accents and window system/glazing from
other locations.



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 2

E

Tonya Zozulya, Lincolnshire’s Economic Development Coordinator, stated staff would like
to note School District 103 and their team of architects has been working diligently on the
building expansion proposal with the Village the last few months. She said the School District is
on a very tight schedule to have the proposal reviewed and approved by the Village and get the
new building under construction. She stated staff is in support of the proposed additions and
noted the following staff comments and recommendations to the ARB:

1. Staff requests the ARB further consider the reasoning behind the fiber cement wall
panels and determine if this material is appropriate where proposed.

2. Staff recommends the ARB consider whether or not the horizontal ribs on the
proposed rooftop screen are appropriately spaced for compatibility with the addition.

3. Staff also recommends aluminum coping to match that found on the building to help
tie the design together.

4. Given chain link fencing is a prohibited material in the Village’s Fences & Screens
Code, Staff recommends chain link fence removed be replaced only with code-
compliant fencing. Staff also encourages the School District to develop a phased
plan to eliminate this prohibited material over a reasonable period of time.

Member Hardnock inquired about the proposed fiber cement material. Mr. Gassen provided a
sample of the material depicting the white color and a smooth finish. He stated it will be installed
near existing stair towers and in between windows.

Chairman Grover inquired about the fiber panel size. Mr. Gassen stated it is approximately
1.5’ x 5’in size.

Member Gulatee inquired about the assembly method. Mr. Gassen responded their intent is to
have no joints between the panels to make them look nondescript.

Member Kennerley stated the white panel accents would fade away against the white brick and
sought clarification regarding their locations.

Member Baskin asked the architect what they are trying to achieve with the addition and how
the addition can be designed to influence students. He would have preferred to see a non-white
exterior color scheme as children are stimulated by color. Mr. Gassen stated the white color
proposed for the addition has been predetermined. They are trying to match the existing
building, including matching the window height.

Member Baskin stated he does not mind the fiber panel material and does agree with staff’s
recommendation regarding incorporating the building coping into the rooftop screen design. He
also stated he does not like the look of the chain link fence.

Mr. Gassen said there are sections of the existing chain link fence along the south property line
abutting Half Day Rd. that may have to be removed due to the expansion of the detention area
in the southwest corner of the property. There is a berm and vegetation adjacent to the fence.
Should that occur, the school district will have no intent to replace the removed fence sections.

Chairman Grover inquired about the depth of the detention basin. Mr. Gassen said the



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 3

E

detention basin may accumulate up to 4’ of water during heavy rain. However, the
water will drain within 24-48 hours. Plantings will obscure the water. He does not
anticipate going outside to play during heavy rain as the School District does take
children’s safety seriously. Chairman Grover asked Mr. Gassen to speak to the
School District about children’s safety related to potential water collecting in the
detention area.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya inquired whether the School
District considered replacing the existing chain link with a wooden fence to match
the existing fence along the east property line. Mr. Gassen said the School District
is not considering that.

Chairman Grover inquired about the ownership of the wooden fence as the
“finished” side faces inward onto the school property. Mr. Gassen said the fence
appears to be 6’ in height. It is unclear who installed it, whether it was the School
District or the adjacent commercial properties to the east.

Trustee Hancock inquired whether the School District is considering installing a
logo or another graphic element on the building façade to break it up. He is also
concerned the building would appear too sterile and confining given the size of the
brick. Mr. Gassen stated the School District has no intention to provide a logo on
the building exterior.

Member Jensen stated he finds the new addition interesting and likes it.

Chairman Grover and Member Hardnock stated they do not have issues with the
proposed paneling.

Member Gulatee asked the ARB if they wanted to request 3D models from the
School District. There was no interest to request it.

Chairman Grover sought any more questions or comments from the ARB. There
being none, requested a motion.

Member Hardnock moved and Member Baskin seconded a motion to approve
and recommend to the Village Board approval of Site and Building Design Plans for
a proposed 24,500 square foot building addition and associated parking lot
relocation for Half Day School, located at 239 Olde Half Day Road, as presented at
a meeting held January 19, 2016 and in a presentation packet dated January 11,
2016 from Wight & Company, with cover letter dated January 14, 2016, and further
subject to incorporating the aluminum coping found on the building into the new
rooftop screen design.

The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 4

E

3.2 Consideration of Site and Building Design Plans for a proposed 14,000 square foot
building addition for Laura B. Sprague Elementary School, 2425 Riverwoods Road
(Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103)

David Gassen, Senior Project Architect, Wright & Co, representing School
District 103 provided background on the proposed building addition. He stated they
propose to remove existing trees and pavement to make room for the addition. He
said the existing canopy will be removed and relocated further north, adjacent to the
playground. It was donated by the American Cancer Society. One existing shed will
be removed and one, furthest to the north, will remain. The existing POD containers
will be removed and not replaced. The proposed rooftop equipment will be centrally
located on the roof and screened per code. Their intent is to match existing brick.
Three different window types are proposed (clear, spandrel grass with opaque
coating and tinted glass). The architect reviewed building massing images. No new
light poles are proposed. Mr. Gassen noted they completed a Sun Study per staff
request. The study showed two properties (one furthest east and one furthest west)
may be impacted by the glare from the building glass in mid-winter for a very brief
time. The study did not account for the existing wooden area near the house to the
east. Mr. Gassen also stated they are proposing replacement evergreen trees
where deciduous trees would be installed per staff request to further protect the
adjacent residents to the south from a possible glare.

Member Jensen stated evergreen trees may not prove a good long-term solution
due to their susceptibility to various diseases. Mr. Gassen stated it is the School
District’s preference not to install evergreens for security reasons but they are open
to it to mitigate potential glare effects.

Member Kennerley inquired about the type of evergreen plantings proposed for the
southwest corner of the property. Scott Laffin, a Landscape Designer, Wight &
Company, stated they were 2 white firs and a blue spruce. No new foundation
landscaping is proposed along the north building elevation.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated staff is in support of the
proposed building addition and would like to offer the following comments to the
ARB:

 The ARB should determine if the proposed foundation landscape screening is
sufficient to break-up the window façade.

 Staff recommends the ARB consider whether or not the horizontal ribs are
appropriately spaced to be compatible with the building.

 Staff also recommends adding aluminum coping to match that found on the
building to help tie the design together. Further, Staff recommends a color
more compatible with the building brick.

 Staff recommends the ARB give due consideration to the appropriateness of
the landscape screening proposed along the south property line. Staff
recommends a landscape hedge, a minimum 3’ tall at planting, be provided



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 5

E

where grades are possible along the south property line in locations adjacent
to the parking lot.

A floor plan was reviewed. Mr. Gassen stated the School District plans to use the
addition for kindergarten classrooms.

Member Hardnock asked staff whether any opposition to the proposed addition
has been received by the Village. Economic Development Coordinator stated
she is not aware of any opposition. Staff received construction-related concerns.

Several ARB members stated they believed the foundation landscaping along the
south and west property line will be destroyed by kids during play and special
events.

There was discussion regarding installing a hedge along the south property line for
screening. Due to limited room along the property line (5’ or less) as well as grade
variations, no big trees would be feasible. Chairman Grover stated he would like to
see a hedge in that location. Trustee Hardnock questioned how a small hedge will
help with the screening and suggested the School District consider providing a
financial allowance to the adjacent neighbors for them to plant taller landscaping on
their property. Mr. Gassen stated no changes are being made to that parking lot;
therefore, the School District feels they should not be required to bring the parking
lot into compliance with screening requirements as part of the building expansion
project.

Trustee Hancock stated he feels the building design looks modern. He inquired
what other window options were considered pointing out the existing windows are
constructed of a dark tinted glass. Mr. Gassen stated the intent is to carry existing
window elements into the addition. No moldings or vertical columns from the
existing building will be incorporated but there will be vertical dividers. Trustee
Hancock stated the School District should consider bringing a second option for the
building design as they may run into opposition given a portion of the addition faces
residential homes.

Member Baskin expressed concern regarding the impossibility of having the new
brick be the exact match for the existing brick which will be a problem. He stated the
proposed design looks interesting but is not in keeping with the traditional
architecture of the existing building.

Mr. Gassen said the match will be pretty close. He also added the proposed
sandstone color for the rooftop screen will complement the building and he does not
feel it should be the exact match for the brick because it will look forced. He showed
a material sample of the proposed corrugated metal material for the rooftop screen.
Chairman Grover suggested tying the rooftop screen to the gym wall located
approximately 8’ south of the proposed rooftop screen.

Member Gulatee inquired when the existing window glass was last replaced. Mr.
Gassen stated he believes it was replaced after the building was built in the early
1960’s but doesn’t know when. Member Gulatee stated the School District may



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 6

E

have to replace it soon given new Energy Code requirements. Member Gulatee
recommended the School District consider using a Schott anti-glare glass product
for the new windows which are glare-free and used in museums and other buildings
(there are examples in Chicago). He also suggested installing vertical fins on the
building to prevent glare. Mr. Gassen stated he is familiar with this product but am
concerned about costs. The proposed glass will produce 12-18% glare.

Member Kennerley recommended swapping some of the proposed plantings along
the south with evergreen bushes such as boxwood for added winter interest. They
are also hardy enough and kid-friendly. Mr. Laffin stated they have no objections to
rearranging the landscape plan to incorporate it provided they maintain the same
coverage for cost reasons.

Member Kennerley moved and Member Gulatee seconded a motion to approve
and recommend to the Village Board approval of Site and Building Design Plans for
a proposed 14,000 square foot building addition for Sprague Elementary School,
located at 2425 Riverwoods Road, as presented at a meeting held January 19,
2016 and in a presentation packet dated January 11, 2016 from Wight & Company,
with cover letter dated January 14, 2016, and further subject to incorporating
aluminum coping into the rooftop screen, installing the rooftop screen flush with the
existing wall and replacing some of the proposed plantings along the south
elevation with evergreen bushes such as boxwood.

The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

Member Jensen departed the meeting at 8:55 p.m.

Trustee Hancock asked staff whether adjacent residents are aware of the school
proposal. Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated all adjacent
property owners within a 250’ radius of the property were notified of the January 12,
2016 Public Hearing and given the opportunity to review proposed plans in the
Community & Economic Development Department office. The Public Hearing was
continued to January 26, 2016. The School District’s request will then be submitted
to the Village Board for final review.

3.3 Consideration of a Wall Signage Plan for Tri-State International Office Center,
located at the southwest corner of Rt. 22 and Interstate Tollway 94 (CDW LLC and
GA Tri-State Office Park LLC)

Ted Garnett, Garnett Architects, representing the Petitioner, explained CDW’s
request, reviewed photo simulations for a new wall sign on the Tollway-facing
elevation on Building #75, a new CDW sign on the Tollway-facing glass element of
the parking garage and approval of 8’ tall signage for Tollway-facing elevations for
the rest of the campus. All signs would have white lettering with halo illumination.
He showed comparable examples from Bannockburn buildings adjacent to the
Tollway for LTD Commodities (3’ tall, facing Half Day Road) and La Quinta Hotel
(8’, facing the Tollway). The CDW signs are proposed at 8’ tall (with 3’ tall letters
and a swoosh, for the overall height of 8’). The proposed garage sign would be
visible the most as viewed from the on-ramp.



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 7

E

Trustee Hancock stated he is concerned about the size of the proposed sign on
the parking deck as it will be very big as viewed from the ramp. He felt the photo
simulations underestimated the size of the sign. He is also concerned the glass
background makes the sign look like a billboard sign. He recommends the sign be
made smaller and relocated from the glass onto the deck wall to the south.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated staff is in support of the
overall request. She noted per the Village Board’s direction, while each individual
wall sign request would have these sign rights, the specific design of each individual
sign request must still be reviewed by the ARB and Village Board. Staff
recommends approval of the CDW request as well as the overall sign package for
the Center as a whole with the following conditions:

 Individual wall sign requests must be reviewed and approved by the ARB
and Village Board.

 This approval applies only to tollway-facing signs in locations depicted on
the Site Plan in the presentation packet.

 The sign plans and details for the proposed CDW wall signs are
approved.

Chairman Grover inquired why the proposed building sign overhangs and does not
fit into the building band. Mr. Garnett stated they wanted to install a larger sign. If
the sign were to fit the band, it would result in a 25% size reduction.

Member Hardnock said he does not object to the parking deck sign being placed
on the glass. He would welcome a red sign in CDW colors. The sign would only be
visible at night. He is in favor of the building sign overhanging on the building façade
both ways.

Member Baskin stated he believes an 8’ tall sign is too big while 3’ too small. He
believes the sign needs to be scaled down. He requested the parking deck sign be
relocated from the glass onto the deck wall.

Member Kennerley stated she likes the look of the new parking deck and has no
objections to the building wall sign but feels the parking deck sign is
disproportionately big. She is concerned it would be too bright at the proposed size.

Mr. Garnett said they could relocate the sign onto the parking deck wall and make it
overhang.

Member Gulatee stated he supports the parking deck sign in the proposed glass
location at 8’ tall.

Kelly Morrissey, CDW Property Manager, Colliers International, stated the deck
is 398’ long. Katie Conroy, Poblocki Signs, the industry standard for highway-
oriented signs is 3’ in height due to high speed limits. People will only focus on the
letters, which are proposed at 3’ tall, not the swoosh.



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 8

E

Chairman Grover asked staff whether they had the height of the previously
approved Open Text wall sign which has since been removed. Economic
Development Coordinator Zozulya stated she did not have that information with
her. She said staff will include it in a memo to the Village Board when this request is
submitted to them for approval.

Chairman Grover stated he is not able to determine whether 8’ tall wall signs are
appropriate for the rest of the CDW campus as he does not know the design and
placement of those signs (e.g., how tall the letters would be as opposed to other
sign elements).

Member Hardnock expressed concerns about allowing 8’ tall signs as some
tenants could request 8’ tall letters.

Ms. Morrissey stated two other companies are interested in applying for wall signs.
She asked for the ARB’s consideration of allowing 3’ tall lettering for future signs so
it is part of the approved sign package for consistency. This would allow tenants to
install such signs with ARB and Village Board approval without a PUD amendment.

Economic Development Coordinator stated 3’ tall letters are already permitted by
code for this location. She requested the ARB’s affirmation of that in the event the
code would not apply to the Tristate PUD. She also stated the code-permitted sign
length is 18’. The proposed CDW building sign is approximately 15’ in length. Ms.
Morrissey stated 3’ tall letters with the overall sign length of up to 18’ would meet
their tenant needs. Two companies that are considering wall signage would only
install letters and not logos.

As there was no consensus on the ARB regarding the proposed CDW building wall
sign, parking deck sign and the overall wall sign height baseline for Tollway-facing
buildings within the Center, Chairman Grover requested  a roll call.

Building Wall Sign
Member Gulatee moved and Member Hardnock seconded a motion to approve
and recommend to the Village Board approval of a proposed 75 Tristate building
wall sign presented in a presentation packet, date stamped received January 14,
2016, subject to relocating the sign 2’ from the edge of the building and centering it
on the band so it protrudes 5” above and 5” below the parapet wall allowing it to
overhang.

Yeas: Hardnock, Gulatee, Kennerley, Barranco

Nays: Grover, Baskin

The motion passed.

Parking Deck Sign
Member Gulatee moved and Member Hardnock seconded a motion to approve
and recommend to the Village Board approval of a sign on the parking deck glass



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 9

E

element as presented in a presentation packet, date stamped received January 14,
2016.

Yeas: Hardnock, Gulatee, Barranco

Nays: Grover, Kennerley and Baskin

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya noted the motion resulted in a tie
and will require 2/3 of the Village Board to approve the request.

Center-Wide Tollway-Facing Signage
Member Gulatee moved and Member Hardnock seconded a motion to approve
and recommend to the Village Board approval of a Wall Signage Plan for the Tri-
State International Office Center to permit wall signs in locations presented in a
presentation packet, date stamped received January 14, 2016, subject to sign
lettering not exceeding 3’ in height.

Yeas: Grover, Hardnock, Kennerley, Gulatee and Barranco

Nays: Baskin

The motion passed.

3.4 Preliminary review of Site Design, Landscape Plans and Building Elevations for a
44-unit Lincolnshire Trails Townhome PUD, 14600 Riverside Rd (KZF
Development/Stack Real Estate)

Jeff Rothbart of Stack Real Estate, Steve Friedman and Danny Zivin of KZF
provided background information on the proposed 44-unit townhome subdivision off
Riverside Road. The subdivision is targeted at empty nesters in their 50’s as well as
divorcees. They believe this will be a successful subdivision due to its safety,
security and privacy. This property was previously approved for 6 single-family
homes.

The proposed subdivision is modeled after the newly constructed subdivision in
Northbrook called Meadow Ridge, located off Techny Road. Village Trustees and
staff had the opportunity to tour the subdivision. The homes will have first floor
master bedrooms and offices with upstairs intended for storage. No basements are
proposed. The buildable area of the property is 6.8 acres due to the floodway.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated this is a workshop meeting
to obtain the ARB’s initial feedback about the proposed subdivision. The Petitioner
would like to incorporate the ARB’s comments into their design plans and bring
back a full design packet for the ARB’s review and recommendation in February. No
recommendation is sought tonight. Staff would like to note the following:

 One of the comments expressed by the Village Board at the preliminary
evaluation was a request to adjust the position of the 4-unit building at the
eastern entrance (Building #27-30).  This can be satisfied by reducing the



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 10

E

number of units from 4 to 2, decreasing the density and allowing for greater
separation between buildings.

 A passive open area, along with a gazebo, is proposed in the center of the
subdivision. The Petitioner indicated no playground area is currently proposed.
The ARB should determine whether the proposed amenities are sufficient in
design and whether additional site amenities need to be incorporated into the
plans.

 The ARB should consider the cross-section of Riverside Road, east of the
eastern entrance to this development. Staff believes it is important the road be
improved to the eastern side of the residential driveway to the Boznos
homestead. This roadway could be reduced in width in this area and full
improvements may not be necessary.

 Since Riverside Road east of the Boznos homestead driveway will continue to be
utilized as a connector for the Lake County Forest Preserve Trail and since this is
still a Village right-of-way, the roadway should be patched and resurfaced, as
necessary.

 Additional trees may need to be planted along Riverside Road, pending
completion of a new Tree Survey, as new, higher quality plantings may be more
appropriate for that location for screening.

 Staff believes the rear elevation of the four-unit design needs to be further
enhanced to break it up.

Trustee Hancock stated he does not believe density reduction (beyond the 44 units
currently proposed) was requested by the Village Board at the preliminary
evaluation. Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya responded staff
reviewed the meeting minutes in which a Village Trustee requested the eastern
building be reoriented and the site plan be further “loosened”, which staff interpreted
it as a request for a further density reduction. She stated staff will double-check the
minutes. Mr. Rothbart noted they take issue with staff’s comment regarding
repositioning Building #27-30 and eliminating 2 units. They do not recall the Village
Board requesting it at the July 27, 2015 preliminary evaluation meeting. He stated
they would need to review meeting tapes.

Mr. Friedman noted they completed a new tree survey and will forward it to staff for
review. He noted the original proposal was for 52 homes and it was reduced to 44
per the Village Board’s request.

The developer’s representatives noted they have high off-site improvement costs,
including a roadway recapture to Pulte and roadway improvements for the portion of
Riverside Drive that is between Pulte’s east property line and the subdivision’s west
property line.

Member Kennerley inquired whether the developer considered different pathway
layouts. Mr. Zivin noted they considered cul-de-sacs but the Village Board
requested a second entrance. He added all yards are private with nice views.

Member Kennerley stated her appreciation for the stone material and requested it
be expanded up and used as a vertical accent.



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 11

E

Member Baskin questioned the rationale behind two-story units as empty-nesters
generally favor one-story living. He stated he likes the consistent material and color
palette with varied roof lines. He believes garages should be deemphasized in all
three models, rear elevations enhanced on four-unit elevations and the scale of
four-unit elevations should be improved.

Mr. Rothbart noted they are providing for front and side loading garages.

Member Hardnock requested an alternate color be proposed for garage doors so
they are not all white. Mr. Zivin stated they are willing to propose one additional
color that would be in the same color family as white to preserve the richness of the
design.

Member Hardnock inquired about proposed amenities for children noting a small
area for children’s play (not necessarily a playground area) should be considered.
Mr. Friedman noted there will be some children visiting the subdivision but they do
not intend to build a playground area. There are very few children in Northbrook’s
Meadow Ridge Subdivision which they believe will be the case in their Lincolnshire
subdivision as well. Mr. Rothbart stated they believe the proposed gazebo with
benches and surrounding open areas will be suitable for child play.

Member Hardnock stated the rows of trees are proposed in such a way that they
block the gazebo and should be relocated. The area adjacent to the gazebo should
be left open. Other ARB members concurred.

Member Gulatee inquired about the floodway boundary. Mr. Rothbart stated no
portion of the homes will encroach into the floodway zone. Mr. Bill Hupperich of
Manhard Consulting stated they are working with the Lake County Stormwater
Management Commission on the floodway issues and will raise the road per SMC
standards to prevent flooding.

Chairman Grover noted he believes the proposed 20’ separation between
buildings is not sufficient, as the buildings feel too close together. He stated his
appreciation for the stone material. Mr. Friedman noted some buildings will be
more than 20’ apart and the Meadow Ridge Subdivision has 15’ between buildings.

Mr. Rothbart stated they will prepare three material designs and color schemes at
the next ARB meeting. No two buildings next to each other will be the same. Mr.
Zivin noted they will enhance the rear of the four-unit buildings but most of the rear
elevations will not be visible from the street.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya inquired about the location of
planned subdivision signage to be reviewed at the next ARB meeting.

Mr. Rothbart stated they will propose some signage in conjunction with a split rail
fence. They would also like to request the ability to install a monument sign at
Milwaukee Avenue and Riverside Road in recognition of their off-site improvements
and given the Pulte development was permitted to install a large subdivision sign
along Milwaukee Avenue. Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated



One Olde Half Day Road
L inco lnsh i re ,  I L  60069
www. l inco lnsh i re i l . gov

V:\Shared_Files\Advisory_Boards\ARB\MINUTES\2016\2016_1_19_ARB_Minutes_Approved.doc Page 12

E

the developer does not own land there so signage is not permitted by code.

Economic Development Coordinator Zozulya stated the developer is scheduled
to return to the next ARB meeting on February 16, 2016 with full plans for ARB
review and recommendation to the Village Board.

4.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS (None)
Chairman Grover welcomed Ann Barranco and Howard Baskin to the ARB.

5.0 NEW BUSINESS

6.0 CITIZENS COMMENTS (None)

7.0 ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, Chairman Grover adjourned the meeting at 10:55 p.m.

Minutes submitted by Tonya Zozulya, Economic Development Coordinator.


